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ORIGINAL
BENJAMIN B. WAGNER FILED

United States Attorney

KYLE REARDON JUL 2212010
Assistant U.S. Attorney s. DISTRICT GOURT
501 I Street, Suite 10-100 CLERK, U.S. ALIFORNIA
Sacramento, California 95814 EASTERN DISTRICTOF G
Telephone: (916).554-2700 & BEFUTY GLERK

SEALED

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

case n& 10=(R-0292 1K

VIOLATIONS: 18 U.S.C..§ 371
Conspiracy; 18 U.S.C. § 494

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

V.
and Public Records
PETER SCOTT, and

ROBERT “Robbie” SCOTT, JR.,

Defendants.

INDICTMENT

COUNT ONE: [18 U.S.C. § 371 - Conspiracyl]
The Grand Jury charges:

. PETER SCOTT, and
ROBERT “Robbie” SCOTT, JR.,

defendants herein, as follows:

I. INTRODUCTION

False Contractors’ Bonds, Bids,

1. On February 19, 2009, President Barack Obama signed into law

the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA). This act provided

$787 billion in stimulus funds to state and local agencies for among

other things, infrastructure projects through federal agencies.
monies were distributed by Executive Branch agencies such as the

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

1

These

b




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28

2. In September 2009, the City of Sacramento (hereinafter
“City”) received a grant from the EPA of federal ARRA funds to
retrofit water meters onto city homes. The California Department of
Public Health (CDPH) also provided funding for this project.

3. The retrofit contract was broken into multiple contracts
("phases"), with each phase being separately bid upon. Bidders for
the water meter retrofit contracts were required to submit Bid
Proposal Guarantees ("Bid Bonds"). A Bid Proposal Guarantee stated
that the bidder would execute the contract at the bidder's bid price,
and that a Performance Bond and Payment Bond would be provided by a
licensed bonding company, in the event that the bidder was awarded the
contract by the city. Performance and Payment Bonds were insurance to
cover any deficiencies in performance by the selected bidder or his
non-payment to subcontractors that might occur during the project
after the contract was awarded and executed. The Bid Proposal
Guarantee provided the City with insurance to cover the cost of
awarding the contract to a higher bidder if the selected bidder did
not execute the contract.

4. Advantage Demolition and Engineering (ADE) is a sole
proprietorship owned by defendant PETER SCOTT. Defendant ROBERT
“Robbie” SCOTT was an employee of ADE and the nephew of defendant

PETER SCOTT.
II. THE CONSPIRACY

6. Beginning no later than on or about August 25, 2009, and
continuing to on or about November 10, 2009, in the State and Eastern
District of California, defendants PETER SCOTT and ROBERT “Robbie”
SCOTT, JR., knowingly combined, conspired, and agréed with each other

and with persons known and unknown to the Grand Jury to commit an
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offense against the United States, to wit, uttering and publishing as
true, false, forged, altered and counterfeited bonds, bids, proposals,
guarantees and writings for the purpose of defrauding the United
States, knowing the same to be false, forged, altered and
counterfeited, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section
494, all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.

ITI. MANNER AND MEANS

The conspiracy was carried out as follows:

7. On a date no later than on or about August 25, 2009, and
continuing through on or about September 28, 2009, defendants PETER
SCOTT, ROBERT “Robbie” SCOTT, JR., and others known and unknown to the
Grand Jury, working on behalf of ADE, prepared and submitted bids for
contracts for eight phases of the ARRA-funded water meter retrofit
project in the City. These eight bids contained Bid Proposal
Guarantees purportedly from Bond Company A known to the Grand Jury
which were purportedly signed by defendant PETER SCOTT and “Jeremy D.
Phillips, Attorney-in-Fact.” 1In fact, these were fraudulent Bid
Proposal Guarantees. They had not in fact been issued by Bond Company
A, and “Jerémy D. Phillips, Attorne?—in—Fact," was a fictional
attorney created by defendants PETER SCOTT, ROBERT “Robbie” SCOTT,
JR., and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury for the purpose of
carrying out this offense.

8. On September 22, 2009, the City awarded Phase Four of the
water meter retrofit project to ADE. The contract award was for
approximately $1.236 million. After being awarded Phase Four, on or
about September 25, 2009, defendant PETER SCOTT submitted to the City
for Phase Four a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond purportedly from

a bonding company, in this case Bonding Company A, as required under
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the Phase Four contract. The bonds were signed by defendant PETER
SCOTT and also had the signature of “Jeremy D. Phillips, Attorney-in-
Fact.” 1In fact, these were fraudulent surety bonds in that they were
not legitimately issued by Bonding Company A, and “Jeremy D. Phillips,
Attorney-in-Fact,” was a fictional attorney created by defendants
PETER SCOTT, ROBERT “Robbie” SCOTT, JR., and others known and unknown
to the Grand Jury for the purpose of carrying out this offense.

9. On or about October 13, 2009, the City awarded Phase Ten of
the water meter retrofit project to ADE. The contract award was for
approximately $2.231 million. After being awarded Phase Ten, on or
about November 10, 2009, defendant PETER SCOTT submitted to the City
for Phase Ten a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond purportedly from a
bonding company, in this case Bonding Company A, as required under
Phase Ten contract. These bonds were signed by defendant PETER SCOTT
and also had the signature of “Jeremy D. Phillips, Attorney-in-Fact.”
In fact, these were fraudulent surety bonds in that they were not
legitimately issued by Bonding Company A, and “Jeremy D. Phillips,
Attorney-in-Fact,” was a fictional attorney created by defendants
PETER SCOTT, ROBERT “Robbie” SCOTT, JR., and others known and unknown
to the Grand Jury for the purpose of carrying out this offense.

IV. OVERT ACTS

In furtherance of the conspiracy, and to achieve the objects
thereof, defendants PETER SCOTT and ROBERT “Robbie” SCOTT, JR.
committed, among others, the following overt acts in the State and
Eastern District of California:

(a) Between on or about August 25, 2009, and on or about
September 28, 2009, defendant PETER SCOTT submitted to the City eight

bid proposals for the water meter retrofit project containing Bid
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Proposal Guarantees purportedly from Bonding Company A.

(b) On or about September 22, 2009, defendant PETER SCOTT
submitted to the City a Payment Bond for Phase Four of the water meter
retrofit project purportedly from Bonding Company A.

(c) On or about September 25, 2009, defendant PETER SCOTT
submitted to the City a Performance Bond for Phase Four of the water
meter retrofit project purportedly from Bonding Company A.

(d) On or about November 10, 2009, defendant PETER SCOTT
submitted to the City a Payment Bond for Phase Ten of the water meter
retrofit project purportedly from Bonding Company A.

(f£) On or about November 10, 2009, defendant PETER SCOTT
submitted to the City é Performance Bond for Phase Ten of the water
meter retrofit project purportedly from Bonding Company A;

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.

COUNTS TWO THROUGH THIRTEEN: [18 U.S.C. § 494 - False Contractors’
Bonds, Bids, and Public Records]

The Grand Jury further charges:

PETER SCOTT, and
ROBERT “Robbie” SCOTT, JR.,

defendants herein, as follows:

1. The allegations set forth in Count One, Paragraphs One
through Four and Seven through Nine are incorporated herein by
reference.

2. Between on or-about August 25, 2009, and on or about
November 10, 2009, in the State and Eastern District of California,
defendants PETER SCOTT and ROBERT “Robbie” SCOTT, JR., uttered and
published as true, false, forged, altered, and counterfeited bonds,

bids, proposals, guarantees and writings, as set forth below:
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Count Phase Bond

2 2 Bid Proposal Guarantee dated
August 25, 2009

3 3 Bid Proposal Guarantee dated
August 25, 2009

4 4 Bid Proposal Guarantee dated
September 1, 2009

5 5 Bid Proposal Guarantee dated
September 7, 2009

6 6 Bid Proposal Guarantee dated
September 7, 2009

7 8 Bid Proposal Guarantee dated
September 1, 2009

8 10 Bid Proposal Guarantee dated
September 22, 2005

9 11 Bid Proposal Guarantee dated
September 28, 2009

10 4 Performance Bond dated
September 25, 2009

11 4 Payment Bond dated September
25, 2009

12 10 Performance Bond dated
November 10, 2009

13 10 Payment Bond dated November

10, 2009

for the purpose of defrauding the United States,

/17
/17
/17
/17
/1]
/17
/17
/17
/17

knowing the same to
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18, United States Code,

United States Attorney

be false, forged, altered, and counterfeited, in violation of Title

Section 494.

A TRUE BILL.
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